
Hamilton County Board of County Commissioners

Commissioner Fairbanks

AGENDA June 01, 2016

ROLL CALL

INVOCATION -

PLEDGE TO THE FLAG - Commissioner Fairbanks

Presentation County Mayor Jim Coppinger declares June as Dairy Month.

Minutes Recessed Meeting - May 11, 2016

Minutes Agenda Session - May 11, 2016

Minutes Regular Meeting - May 18, 2016

Report Trustee Excess Fee Report -  April 2016

Report Trustee Monthly Report - April 2016

Report Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Planning Commission - Board Appointment - Mr. Chris
Mabee.

Res. No. 616-1 A Resolution to approve and accept applications for notary public positions, the bonds and oaths
of notaries previously elected, oaths of Deputy Sheriffs, the bond of Deputy Sheriff, the oath of
office of Commissioner of North West Utility District, and the oaths of Judicial Commissioners.

Res. No. 616-2 A Resolution to appoint one (1) member to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Health
Council for a four (4) year term beginning June 1, 2016 and ending June 1, 2020.

Res. No. 616-3 A Resolution confirming the reappointment of County Commissioner Jim Fields, County Clerk
William "Bill" Knowles, County Finance Administrator Al Kiser, County Attorney Rheubin M.
Taylor and County Auditor Bill McGriff, as members of the Hamilton County Ethics Committee
for terms of two (2) years.

Res. No. 616-4 A Resolution making an appropriation to Tri-Community Volunteer Fire Department in the
amount of ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies, as
allotted to District Seven.

Res. No. 616-5 A Resolution accepting the proposal of Collins & Company, Inc. to provide claims administration
services for Hamilton County’s Self Insurance Program for a period of three (3) years, beginning
July 1, 2016, with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year terms, and to authorize
the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-6 A Resolution accepting the bid of Kleen-A-Matic for a one (1) year contract beginning, July 1,
2016 through June 30, 2017, with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, for
linen services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement
this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-7 A Resolution accepting the bid of Bliss Products and Services, Inc. for shredded rubber mulch
amounting to $24,500.00 for the Recreation Department and authorizing the County Mayor to
sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-8 A Resolution accepting the bid of Prater Ford, Inc. for one (1) 4x4 utility vehicle amounting to
$27,252.10 for Emergency Medical Services and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any
contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-9 A Resolution accepting the bid of BFI Waste Services of North America for four (4) year contract
pricing, beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2020, with the option to renew for two (2)
additional two (2) year terms for solid waste services for the Support Services Department and
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this Resolution.

Res. No. 616-10 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefor: Brady Drive, Rod Lane and Prissy Lane.

Res. No. 616-11 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefor: Alexandra Place and Abigail Lane.



Res. No. 616-12 A Resolution to amend the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” so as to accept the following
district roads and to establish speed limits therefor: White Pine Drive, Red Deer Lane, Gray Fox
Court and Black Walnut Drive.

ANNOUNCEMENTS

DELEGATIONS ON MATTERS OTHER THAN ZONING

Any invocation that may be offered before the official start of the Commission
meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private citizen, to and for the
benefit of the Commission.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation
speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the Commission
and do not necessarily represent the religious beliefs or views of the
Commission in part or as a whole.  No member of the community is required to
attend or participate in the invocation and such decision will have no impact on
their right to actively participate in the business of the Commission.



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 11, 2016 
 

1 
 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Recessed Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 11, 2016 

 

 BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of May, 2016, a Recessed Meeting 

of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the 

Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the 

following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

 Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman Bankston. 

Commissioner Mackey arrived moments after the roll was called. Total present – 9.  

Total absent -0. 

 

 Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 Commissioner Smedley introduced Director Fred Bennett, Titus International, 

who gave the invocation. Tennessee State Representative Mike Carter led in the pledge 

to the flag. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 11, 2016 
 

2 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-13A A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ENTERING INTO A 

LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF 

EDUCATION AND TOWER ASSETS NEWCO IX, LLC, OF CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY OWNED BY THE HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION FOR 

THE ERECTION OF A CELL TOWER, AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 

SAID LEASE (PREVIOUSLY RES. NO. 416-28 AND 516-13). 

 

It was noted that this Resolution, previously known as Resolution No. 416-28, 

was postponed at the April 20, 2016 Regular Meeting. It was renumbered Resolution 

No. 516-13 and deferred at the May 4, 2016 Regular meeting.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd to 

remove Resolution No. 516-13A from the table. The foregoing Motion was unanimously 

adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total 

absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

It was noted that a previous Motion to amend Resolution No. 516-13A was still 

on the floor.   



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 11, 2016 
 

3 
 

Attorney Taylor provided an explanation of the amendment stating that the 

Commission’s actions on proceeding with the cell tower proposal would be contingent 

on the understanding that the revenues will be used to fund the construction of the East 

Ridge High School football stadium.  

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Commissioner Boyd explained 

that the School Board is meeting tomorrow to discuss redirecting the revenues from the 

cell tower to fund construction of the football stadium. He noted that it was in the best 

interest of the Commission to postpone the vote until after the School Board has 

reached their decision.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

postpone Resolution No. 516-13A until Wednesday, May 18th. The foregoing Motion 

was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission 

being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner 

Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total 

absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 11, 2016 
 

4 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-22 A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING_____________________ 

AS CHIEF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONER FOR A TERM BEGINNING MAY 11, 2016, 

AND ENDING __________________; AND ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION 

TO BE RECEIVED. 

 

 Chairman Bankston opened the floor for nominations for Chief Judicial 

Commissioner.  

 

 Commissioner Fields nominated Randall L. Russell. Commissioner Beck 

nominated Sharetta T. Smith. There were no other nominations.  

 

County Clerk Knowles  called the roll, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Sharetta T. 

Smith”, Commissioner Boyd, “Randall L. Russell”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Randall L. 

Russell”, Commissioner Fields, “Randall L. Russell”,  Commissioner Graham, “Randall 

L. Russell”, Commissioner Haynes, “Randall L. Russell”, Commissioner Mackey, 

“Sharetta T. Smith”, Commissioner Smedley, “Randall L. Russell”, and Chairman 

Bankston, “Randall L. Russell”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Randall L. 

Russell” votes – 7.  Total “Sharetta T. Smith” votes – 2. 

 

Clerk Knowles was asked to call the roll on the Resolution with the name of 

Randall L. Russell in the blank. 



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 11, 2016 
 

5 
 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-22 with the name of Randall L. Russell in the blank. The 

foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and 

Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  

Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 Commissioner Graham complemented the exemplary job the Hamilton County 

Judicial Commissioners are doing. He added that any of them who wished to be 

considered for Chief Judicial Commissioner in the future are encouraged to show the 

initiative to do so.  

 

 Clerk Knowles asked for clarification regarding the ending term date left blank in 

the Resolution regarding the appointment of the Chief Judicial Commissioner.  

Chairman Bankston stated that the term was for six months and Attorney Taylor would 

provide the Clerk’s office with an updated Resolution filling in the name and term 

blanks. 

  



RECESSED MEETING 
HAMILTON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MAY 11, 2016 
 

6 
 

 Commissioner Beck clarified that his vote for Ms. Smith was not a vote against 

Mr. Russell. He noted that it would be of benefit to rotate the Chief position to prevent 

any politics or bias from influencing decisions.  

  

 Being no further business Chairman Bankston declared the recessed meeting 

adjourned. 

 

 

      

     Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
      
     _______________________________ 
     William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
 

 

 

Approved: 
 
 
______ 
Date  Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 1 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 11, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 11th day of May, 2016, an Agenda 

Preparation Session of the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and 

held at the Courthouse, in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, 

when the following proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names:  Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston.  Total present - 9.  Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 2 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston indicated the upcoming agenda items would be considered 

as follows: 

• The Juvenile Court Clerk’s Reports for December 2015, January 2016 and 
February 2016 would be submitted for the record. 

• An Order of Designation to the Planning Commission would be submitted as a 
matter of record. 

• Resolution No. 516-23 was the usual County Clerk item regarding notaries, etc.  
This required no committee assignment. 

• Resolution Nos. 516-35, 516-36A, 516-36B, and 516-37 were assigned to the 
Zoning Committee, chaired by Commissioner Haynes. 

• Resolution Nos. 516-38 through 516-46 were assigned to the Finance 
Committee, chaired by Commissioner Boyd. 

• Resolution Nos. 516-24 through 516-34 were heard by a Committee of the 
Whole. 

 
 

Chairman Bankston stated that Resolution Nos. 516-24 through 516-34 would 

now be heard by the Committee of the Whole.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-30 

 

 Circuit Court Clerk and former County Commissioner Larry Henry spoke 

regarding this item, which adjusts the petit juror pay from $13.00 per day to $10.00 with 

the $3.00 difference going towards the direct payment of petit juror parking fees. He 

began by introducing several Hamilton County judges who were present in the audience 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 3 

at today’s meeting including Circuit Court Judge J.B. Bennett, Criminal Court Judge 

Barry Steelman, Circuit Court Judge Jeff Hollingsworth, Criminal Court Judge Tom 

Greenholtz, Circuit Court Judge W. Neil Thomas, and Circuit Court Judge Marie 

Williams. He also introduced Circuit Court Clerk’s office employees Chief Deputy Clerk 

Susan Sissom, Assistant Jury Coordinator Margaret McConnell, and Chief Financial 

Officer Sheilah Watson.  

 

 Mr. Henry explained that currently jurors are paid $13.00 per day with a daily out 

of pocket parking fee of $4.00, which is set to increase to $6.00 per day in June. 

Reducing the pay to $10.00 per day will allow jurors to park at no charge in the County 

parking garage. He added that parking fees are the main complaint of those called to 

serve jury duty.  It was noted that the average juror pay across the State of Tennessee 

is $10.00 per day.  

 

 Judge Bennett read some of the responses regarding parking from a Jury 

Questionnaire sent to all citizens who have served on a jury in Hamilton County. He 

added that while most express a positive experience during their jury service, the most 

consistent complaint is the out of pocket parking fees.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 4 

 Commissioner Graham expressed his support for this item. He agreed that 

citizens fulfilling their civic duty by serving on a jury should not be required to pay out of 

pocket for parking.  

 

 Commissioner Haynes added that he has heard complaints about parking fees 

during jury service from constituents in District 3, and will be supporting this item next 

week.  

 

 Chairman Bankston added that it was not necessary for the judges to attend next 

week’s meeting.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-31 

 

 Administrator of Public Works and County Engineer Todd Leamon spoke 

regarding this item, which authorizes the sale of 18.8 acres at Enterprise South 

Industrial Park jointly owned by Hamilton County and the City of Chattanooga to Tag 

Manufacturing, Inc at the sale price of $40,000 per acre, totalling $752,000.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Fields question, Attorney Taylor confirmed that his 

office has reviewed and approved the closing documents.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 5 

 Mayor Coppinger  reported that Hamilton County Real Property Manager Paul 

Parker was present to give any further details on the project. He thanked Steve Hiatt, 

Chamber of Commerce, and State Representative Mike Carter, both present at today’s 

meeting, for their hard work in keeping this project in Hamilton County. He explained 

that the property was sold at a discounted rate, but did not involve a PILOT agreement 

and the expansion project is set to create several hundred jobs. It was noted that past 

parcels of property at Enterprise South have been sold at discounted rates for these 

types of projects.   

 

 Commissioner Haynes added that he has done business with Tag Manufacturing 

throughout the years, and is looking forward to their expansion.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Haynes question, Mr. Hiatt reported that the 

average annual salary for manufacturing jobs is approximately $45,000. He 

complimented owners and brothers Terry and Gary Wilt for their dedication to their 

employees.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question, Mr. Hiatt clarified that the project 

is an expansion of the exisiting Discovery Drive facility and not a replacement. He 

explained that stormwater issues were a potential concern if the expansion took place at 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 6 

the exising site, but will not present an issue at the new site. Representative Carter 

confirmed that the new facility will eliminate any stormwater issues.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd thanked Mr. Hiatt and Representative Carter for staying 

ahead of development and bringing jobs to Hamilton County.  

 

 Representative Carter spoke about the welcoming environment and cooperation 

the County Mayor and other Hamilton County officials as well as the the Chamber of 

Commerce presented to the Wilt brothers when they expressed a desire to expand their 

facility in Hamilton County. He thanked Commissioners for their consideration.  

 

 Commissioner Graham thanked Mr. Hiatt and Representative Carter. He 

expressed his appreciation to Representative Carter for his dedication to his 

constituents and the work he is doing for Hamilton County at the state level.  

 

 Commissioner Haynes added that captial investment is projected to be 

approximately $15 million. He complimented the Wilt brothers for contributing to 

economic development in Hamilton County.  

 

 Representative Carter expressed his pride that this project is taking place in 

Hamilton County.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 7 

 Mayor Coppinger congratulated the Chamber and thanked them for their work. 

He reported that any calls or concerns addressed to Representative Carter are always 

returned promptly and thanked him for always representing the best interests of 

Hamilton County.  

 

 Chairman Bankston thanked Mr. Hiatt and Representative Carter for their work 

on this project. He agreed with Mayor Coppinger’s comments that any calls to 

Representative Carter are always answered or returned.   

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-24 

  

 This Resolution confirms the reappointment of William Pippin to the Sheriff’s Civil 

Service Advisory Board for a three-year term, beginning May 18, 2016 and ending May 

18, 2019.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-25 

  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 8 

Chairman Bankston spoke regarding this item, which approves the expenditure 

of up to $2,500.00 from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to District 9, to assist with 

the purchase of a sound system for Ooltewah Middle School.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-26 

 

Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $1,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 4, to Chattanooga Inner 

City Youth Association. It was noted that the funds will assist the nonprofit with 

programming and to provide resources for youth.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-27 

  

 Commissioner Mackey spoke regarding this item, which appropriates $3,000.00 

from general fund discretionary monies, as allotted to District 4, to Orchard Knob 

Neighborhood Association. He reported that 4 shootings occurred Sunday, May 8th and 

these funds are to help the people and the community in District 4.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 9 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-28 

 

 Commissioner Smedley spoke regarding this item, which approves the 

expenditure of up to $2,000.00 from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to District 7, to 

purchase a flag pole for East Hamilton Middle High School. It was noted that on April 

20, 2016, Resolution No. 416-30 approved the exchange of funds between 

Commissioner Smedley and Commissioner Boyd in order to make the purchase of the 

flag pole possible.  

 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-29 

 

 Commissioner Haynes spoke regarding this item, which approves the 

expenditure of $2,800.00 from discretionary bond funds, as allotted to District 3, to 

assist in the cost of reconditioning the running track at Big Ridge Elementary School. He 

recognized District 3 School Board Member Dr. Greg Martin for his help with this 

project. It was noted that the funds are from last year’s bond fund.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 10 

There were no questions from Commissioners. 

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-32 

 

 Administrator of Public Works and County Engineer Todd Leamon spoke 

regarding this item, which accepts the bid of Talley Construction Company, Inc. for 

construction of the Daisy Elementary School access road amounting to $554,368.78. 

He reported that the project includes a secondary access road to connect Daisy 

Elementary School to Sequoyah Access Road and a “stacking lane” which provides ten 

lanes for parents to pick up and drop off children. It was noted that funding for the 

project includes $100,000 from discretionary funds earmarked by former Commissioner 

Fred Skillern, $250,000 from proceeds from the sale of Ooltewah Elementary School, 

and a $204,369 reimbursement from the Department of Education.  

 

 Commissioner Boyd expressed his appreciation to see this project put into 

action. He reported that former Commissioner Skillern was very involved in this project 

when it became a topic of discussion five years ago.  

 

 Mayor Coppinger called attention to the hard work that Real Property Manager 

Paul Parker and Mr. Leamon put into making this project possible.   

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 11 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-33 

 

 This Resolution accepts the bids of School Specialty, Inc., Virco, Inc., Interior 

Elements, LLC, School Outfitters, and Ernie Morris Enterprises for school furnishings for 

Middle Valley, Nolan, and Wolftever Elementary Schools, as well as any additional 

schools needing furniture for the Hamilton County Department of Education.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – RESOLUTION NO. 516-34 

 

 This Resolution accepts the bid of Southeastern Communications Services, Inc. 

for the installation, termination, testing, programming, and certification of an Apogee 

Sound System at Middle Valley Elementary School for the Telecommunications 

Department amounting to $37,400.00.  

 

 There were no questions from Commissioners.  

 

Commissioner Haynes, Chairman of the Zoning Committee, announced that the 

Zoning Committee would be meeting in the adjacent Conference Room immediately 

following today’s Agenda Session.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 12 

Commissioner Boyd, Chairman of the Finance Committee, announced that the 

Finance Committee would be meeting in the Commission Room immediately following 

today’s Agenda Session. 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission.  

 

Commissioner Graham thanked Commissioner Smedley for organizing the joint 

meeting between Commissioners and the School Board on Tuesday, May 10th at the 

Department of Education. He reported that communication between Commissioners 

and School Board members was a problem at the meeting, and he was disturbed to 

hear about issues with rodents in schools, water in the floor of the library at one school, 

and sewer gas that has been leaking in another school for 20 years. He stated that the 

Commission provides the revenue for the school system every year through growth 

funds, and the school system’s budget has dramatically risen each year.  

 

He said the county school fund balance is about $59 million, and though about 

$12 million is mandated, pushing the total up to $20 million to be conservative still 

leaves approximately $39 million that could be used for items like sewer gas issues and 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 13 

rodents, and other needs to provide for students. He added that every classroom should 

be equipped the same with decent facilities, and having $39 million in the bank is not 

servicing the students of Hamilton County or helping their education.  

 

Commissioner Boyd publicly thanked Dr. Greg Martin, District 3 School Board 

member, for his conservative points at last night’s meeting. He commended Dr. Martin 

for suggesting that the School Board look internally to see if any ineffective and 

inefficient programs could be cut before asking the Commission for additional money.  

 

Commissioner Beck also thanked Commissioner Smedley for organizing last 

night’s meeting. He reported that the list of deferred school maintenance costs 

amounted to over $200 million, yet several new schools continue to be built. He referred 

to an agreement (See 12-30-15 Handout) between the school system, City of 

Chattanooga, and Chattanooga Housing Authority involving a land swap under the 

condition that Howard High School would be provided with a new football stadium. The 

current football field is no longer usable because it is flooded with sewage.  

 

He noted that the school board maintenance list included $236,000 to make 

repairs to the current stadium, which indicated to him that the school system was not 

upholding their part of the agreement. He added that the list appeared to be out of date, 

as certain items had already been taken care of using Commissioner’s discretionary 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 14 

funds. He stated that someone needs to take the lead on making sure the money 

allotted to the school system is spent the right way.   

 

In response to Commissioner Beck’s question, Attorney Taylor clarified that the 

growth money given to the schools each year has to be enough to “maintain effort”. 

Administrator of Finance Albert Kiser added that in order to withhold the growth funds, 

the schools portion of the tax rate would need to be lowered.  

 

Commissioner Smedley agreed with a statement Commissioner Mackey made at 

last night’s meeting when he stated that the schools appeared to be reacting and not 

doing enough planning. She added that the Commission would much rather see the 

funds come from growth rather than raising property taxes. She referred to the 

$900,000 in stadium repairs on the maintenance list and stated that the school board 

could take that out of their fund balance tomorrow to fix the situation if the will was 

there. She added that the Commission is under pressure to rectify the situation; 

however they are not in charge of allocating the funds. She pointed out that the 

proposed FY17 budget for the Department of Education includes an additional $10.2 

million in BEP funds and an additional $3 million in growth funds. She also requested 

figures showing how much money the Department of Education has received through 

PILOT programs. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 15 

Mayor Coppinger announced a budget workshop will take place Thursday, May 

12th at 9:00 am at the McDaniel Building.  

 

Chairman Bankston reiterated that the Commission is not in charge of how the 

money allotted to the school system is spent. He noted that there are state laws that 

govern how the money is spent.  

 

Commissioner Graham reported that he would be attending the budget workshop 

tomorrow morning, but that he would be leaving early to pick up his mother, who is 

being discharged from the hospital after a period of illness.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
AGENDA PREPARATION SESSION 

MAY 11, 2016 
 
 

 16 

 
DELEGATIONS 

 

Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

Being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting adjourned 

until Wednesday, May 18th at 9:30 AM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted: 

      

      _________________________________   
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 

           

__________   
Date      Clerk’s Initials 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

1 

 

STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Regular Meeting 

COUNTY OF HAMILTON  )  May 18, 2016 

 

BE IT REMEMBERED, that on this 18th day of May, 2016, a Regular Meeting of 

the Hamilton County Board of Commissioners was begun and held at the Courthouse, 

in the City of Chattanooga, in the County Commission Room, when the following 

proceedings were held, to wit:-- 

 

Present and presiding was the Honorable Chester Bankston, Chairman. County 

Clerk Bill Knowles called the roll of the County Commission and the following, 

constituting a quorum, answered to their names: Commissioner Beck, Commissioner 

Boyd, Commissioner Fairbanks, Commissioner Fields, Commissioner Graham, 

Commissioner Haynes, Commissioner Mackey, Commissioner Smedley, and Chairman 

Bankston. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

 

Also in attendance were County Mayor Jim Coppinger, members of his 

administrative staff, County Attorney Rheubin Taylor, and County Auditor Bill McGriff. 

 

Attached hereto is a copy of the Public Notice of this meeting, which was 

published in a local newspaper and made a matter of record of this meeting. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

2 

 

Commissioner Smedley introduced President and General Director Ed Frampton, 

International Board of Jewish Missions, who gave the invocation. Chief Deputy Sheriff 

Allen Branum led in the pledge to the flag.  

 

PRESENTATION – TWRA REPORT ON DEER AT ENTERPRISE SOUTH NATURE 

PARK  

 

 Ben Layton, Regional Deer Biologist for Tennessee Wildlife Resource Agency 

(TWRA) spoke regarding the report. He provided a brief background on the history of 

the deer herd inside the park. He reported that in 2010 his agency was called to 

evaluate the deer population after concerns of multiple deer and vehicle collisions. 

Supervised deer hunts were allowed beginning in 2010 on the acreage adjacent to 

Highway 58 and Hickory Valley Road, which is outside of the public area of the park, to 

control the deer overpopulation. He provided details regarding various techniques used 

to monitor deer density within the park, including population surveys with thermal 

imaging cameras and abomasal parasite counts (APC) to determine internal parasite 

levels in deer. Those levels are compared to an index, which determines if the deer 

herd is above what the habitat can support. 

 

 Mr. Layton reported that recent APC levels have shown the population to be 

below what the habitat is designed to support. Based on those findings, he 

recommended that the hunt be suspended on the Hickory Valley Road side of the park 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

3 

 

while his agency continues to monitor the deer herd in that area. He added that allowing 

a hunt to take place every two years might be necessary to keep the population under 

control. He thanked Commissioners and stated that he was available for any questions 

they might have.  

 

 Chairman Bankston thanked Mr. Layton for his presentation.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Fields, 

that the minutes of the Recessed Meeting of April 27, 2016, the Agenda Preparation 

Session of April 27, 2016, and the Regular Meeting of May 4, 2016, be approved, treat 

same as read, made a matter of record and filed. The foregoing Motion was 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

4 

 

JUVENILE COURT CLERK REPORTS 

  

The Juvenile Court Clerk reports for December 2015, January 2016, and 

February 2016 were submitted and made a matter of record. 

 

ORDER OF DESIGNATION 

 

 An order was submitted for the record designating Todd Leamon to sit as the 

County Mayor’s representative on the Planning Commission for the meeting of May 9, 

2016.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-23 A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT 

APPLICATIONS FOR NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 

NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, AND OATH OF DEPUTY SHERIFF. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-23. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

5 

 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston reported that Resolution Nos. 516-24 through 516-34 were 

heard by a Committee of the Whole.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-24 A RESOLUTION TO CONFIRM THE REAPPOINTMENT 

OF ONE (1) MEMBER TO THE SHERIFF'S CIVIL SERVICE ADVISORY BOARD FOR 

A THREE (3) YEAR TERM, BEGINNING MAY 18, 2016 AND ENDING MAY 18, 2019. 

 

 This Resolution reappoints William Pippin.  

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-24. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 
 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

6 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-25 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

UP TO TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500.00) FROM 

DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS (AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT NINE) TO ASSIST 

WITH THE PURCHASE OF A SOUND SYSTEM FOR OOLTEWAH MIDDLE 

SCHOOL. 

 
ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-25. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 516-26 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

CHATTANOOGA INNER CITY YOUTH ASSOCIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF ONE 

THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY 

MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

7 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-26. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 516-27 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO 

ORCHARD KNOB NEIGHBORHOOD WATCH ASSOCIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF 

THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($3,000.00) FROM GENERAL FUND 

DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT FOUR. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Mackey, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-27. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

8 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-28 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

UP TO TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FROM DISCRETIONARY BOND 

FUNDS AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN TO PURCHASE A FLAG POLE FOR 

EAST HAMILTON MIDDLE HIGH SCHOOL. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Smedley, seconded by Commissioner Beck, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-28. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Graham announced that he was present.  

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 516-29 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF 

TWO THOUSAND EIGHT HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,800.00) FROM 

DISCRETIONARY BOND FUNDS AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT THREE, TO ASSIST 

IN THE COST OF RECONDITIONING THE RUNNING TRACK AT BIG RIDGE 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOL. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-29. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

9 

 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 
 
RESOLUTION NO. 516-30 A RESOLUTION TO ADJUST PETIT JUROR PAY TO 

$10.00 PER DAY AND REALLOCATE $3.00 OF THE PREVIOUSLY AUTHORIZED 

$13.00 PER DAY TOWARDS THE DIRECT PAYMENT OF PETIT JUROR PARKING 

FEES BY HAMILTON COUNTY WITH NO INCREASE IN THE GENERAL FUND 

BUDGET. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Fairbanks, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-30. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

10 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-31 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO ENTER INTO AND EXECUTE AN "OFFER TO PURCHASE" RELATIVE TO 

TRACT 4 OF THE ENTERPRISE SOUTH INDUSTRIAL PARK AND AUTHORIZING 

THE COUNTY MAYOR TO EXECUTE A DEED AND OTHER NECESSARY CLOSING 

DOCUMENTS CONVEYING SAID PROPERTY TO THE PURCHASER LISTED 

HEREINBELOW UPON PAYMENT OF THE SALE PRICE BY THE PURCHASER. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Beck, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-31. The foregoing Resolution was unanimously adopted on a 

Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and 

voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, 

“Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. 

Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-32 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF TALLEY 

CONSTRUCTION COMPANY, INC. FOR THE DAISY ELEMENTARY ACCESS ROAD 

AMOUNTING TO $554,368.78 FOR THE ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

11 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fairbanks, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-32. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Beck announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-33 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF SCHOOL 

SPECIALTY, INC., VIRCO, INC., INTERIOR ELEMENTS, LLC, SCHOOL 

OUTFITTERS, AND ERNIE MORRIS ENTERPRISES FOR CONTRACT UNIT 

PRICING, BEGINNING MAY 18, 2016, THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2016, FOR 

SCHOOL FURNISHINGS FOR MIDDLE VALLEY, NOLAN AND WOLFTEVER 

ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS AND ANY ADDITIONAL SCHOOLS NEEDING 

FURNITURE FOR THE HAMILTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND 

TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 ON MOTION of Commissioner Fields, seconded by Commissioner Boyd, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-33.  

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

12 

 

 Chairman Bankston stated that Director of Maintenance and Operations for the 

Hamilton County Department of Education Justin Witt’s parents were involved in an 

automobile accident, and he was out of town and unable to attend today’s meeting.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Graham’s question, Purchasing Director Gail 

Roppo reported that she spoke with Mr. Witt yesterday and at this time no other schools 

are in need of furniture, but the bid went out on a unit contract basis to allow any 

additional schools to buy off the contract if the need arises once the next school year 

begins. She clarified additional purchases might have to come before the Commission 

depending on the amount.  

 

 The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following 

members of the County Commission being present and voting as follows: 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Beck announced that he was present.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-34 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF THE 

SOUTHEASTERN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES, INC. FOR THE INSTALLATION, 

TERMINATION, TESTING, PROGRAMMING AND CERTIFICATION OF AN APOGEE 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

13 

 

SOUND SYSTEM AT MIDDLE VALLEY ELEMENTARY SCHOOL FOR THE 

TELECOMMUNICATIONS OFFICE AMOUNTING TO $37,400.00 AND TO 

AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 

IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Fields, to 

adopt Resolution No. 516-34. The foregoing Resolution was adopted on a Roll Call 

vote, with the following members of the County Commission being present and voting 

as follows: Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Fields, “Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, 

“Aye”. Total present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 8.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

Commissioner Beck announced that he was present.  

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 516-35, 516-36A, 516-36B, and 

516-37 be considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-35 A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

PERMIT FOR PART OF A PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1196 JACKSON MILL DRIVE 

FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

14 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-36A A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

PERMIT FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 7623 SWEET FERN DRIVE, 7677 

PEPPERTREE DRIVE AND 8830 GREEN GAP ROAD FOR RESIDENTIAL PLANNED 

UNIT DEVELOPMENT. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-36B A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

PERMIT FOR PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 7623 SWEET FERN DRIVE, 7677 

PEPPERTREE DRIVE AND 8830 GREEN GAP ROAD FOR RESIDENTIAL PLANNED 

UNIT DEVELOPMENT. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-37 A RESOLUTION GRANTING A SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 

PERMIT FOR A RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY 

LOCATED AT 7201 HIXSON PIKE. 

 

 Commissioner Haynes provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 516-35, 516-

36A, 516-36B, and 516-37, and stated that the Zoning Committee reviewed and 

recommended approval of Resolution Nos. 516-35, 516-36B, and 516-37. It was noted 

that Resolution No. 516-36B included certain conditions as recommended by the 

Regional Planning Commission. No opposition was present at today’s meeting.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Haynes, seconded by Commissioner Graham, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 516-35, 516-36B, and 516-37. The foregoing Resolutions were 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

15 

 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

Chairman Bankston asked that Resolution Nos. 516-38 through 516-46 be 

considered together at this time.  

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-38 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 

GLOCK GUNS AMOUNTING TO $85,890.00 FROM CRAIG'S FIREARM SUPPLY, 

INC. FROM THE STATE CONTRACT FOR THE SHERIFF'S OFFICE AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-39 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF NICHOLS 

FLEET EQUIPMENT, INC. FOR ONE (1) ARTICULATING CRANE SYSTEM 

AMOUNTING TO $34,695.00 FOR THE HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

16 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-40 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE DEPARTMENT 

OF HEALTH AND HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT, FOR THE JULY 1, 2016 - JUNE 30, 2019 CONTRACT PERIOD, IN 

AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,040,300.00 TO PROVIDE TENNDERCARE 

OUTREACH PROGRAM SERVICES. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-41 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTINUED SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENTS WITH THE 

PARTNERSHIP FOR FAMILIES, CHILDREN AND ADULTS, INC. AND SIGNAL 

CENTERS INC. BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 AND ENDING JUNE 30, 2017, TO 

PROVIDE TITLE XX SOCIAL SERVICES FOR ELIGIBLE INDIVIDUALS AND 

FAMILIES AMOUNTING TO $338,037.00. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-42 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR 

ON BEHALF OF HAMILTON COUNTY, TENNESSEE, THE HEALTH SERVICES 

DIVISION, OPERATING AS THE CHATTANOOGA-HAMILTON COUNTY HEALTH 

DEPARTMENT TO SIGN A CONTINUATION CONTRACT WITH THE TENNESSEE 

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH IN THE AMOUNT OF $312,900.00 TO PROVIDE 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

17 

 

TUBERCULOSIS CONTROLS SERVICES IN HAMILTON COUNTY FOR A TIME 

PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-43 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF INDUS 

INTERNATIONAL, INC. FOR ONE (1) LARGE PLANETARY BOOK SCANNER 

AMOUNTING TO $31,010.00 FOR THE MICROFILM DEPARTMENT AND 

AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY 

TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-44 A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF 

CISCO EQUIPMENT AMOUNTING TO $49, 129.04 FROM POMEROY IT SOLUTIONS 

SALES COMPANY, INC. FROM THE STATE CONTRACT FOR THE INFORMATION 

TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 

SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-45 A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BIDS OF 

INTEGRATED NETWORKING TECHNOLOGIES, LLC DBA INTEC, CONVERGINT 

TECHNOLOGIES, AND CENTRAL TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR CONTRACT UNIT 

PRICING FOR AVIGILON CAMERA EQUIPMENT FOR THE PERIOD OF MAY 18, 

2016, THROUGH MAY 17, 2017, FOR THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS DEPARTMENT 

AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 

NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

18 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 516-46 A RESOLUTION RATIFYING THE PURCHASE OF 

GASOLINE AND DIESEL FUEL FOR THE PERIOD OF APRIL 1, 2016, THROUGH 

APRIL 30, 2016, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 

CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 

 Commissioner Boyd provided details regarding Resolution Nos. 516-38 through 

516-46, and stated that the Finance Committee reviewed and recommended approval.  

 

 In response to Commissioner Boyd’s question regarding Resolution No. 516-39, 

Administrator of Public Works and County Engineer Todd Leamon clarified the term 

“catastrophic breakdown” was meant to describe an older piece of equipment with 

broken parts that were expensive to replace, and the most cost effective solution was to 

replace the entire piece of machinery.   

 

 In response to Commissioner Beck’s question regarding Resolution No. 516-38, 

Director of Administration for the Sheriff’s Office Don Gorman reported that 210 

weapons will be purchased at $409.00 per unit.  

 

ON MOTION of Commissioner Boyd, seconded by Commissioner Smedley, to 

adopt Resolution Nos. 516-38 through 516-46. The foregoing Resolutions were 

unanimously adopted on a Roll Call vote, with the following members of the County 

Commission being present and voting as follows: Commissioner Beck, “Aye”, 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

19 

 

Commissioner Boyd, “Aye”, Commissioner Fairbanks, “Aye”, Commissioner Fields, 

“Aye”,  Commissioner Graham, “Aye”, Commissioner Haynes, “Aye”, Commissioner 

Mackey, “Aye”, Commissioner Smedley, “Aye”, and Chairman Bankston, “Aye”. Total 

present – 9. Total absent – 0. Total “Aye” votes – 9.  Total “Nay” votes – 0. 

 

 Chairman Bankston reported that Resolution No. 516-13A, which was postponed 

at last week’s Recessed Meeting, would be postponed without objection until the 

Recessed Meeting of May 25, 2016.  

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

  

Chairman Bankston asked for announcements from members of the 

Commission. 

 

Commissioner Haynes spoke about concerns within the community regarding a 

senior property tax freeze and what steps the Commission will take to address the 

matter in the future. He reported that Hamilton County property taxes have not 

increased since 2007, and an increase does not appear likely this budget year. He 

spoke about reviewing tax bills with his 83-year-old mother and noticed that her County 

property taxes have gone up $1.00 since 2007, while her City of Chattanooga property 

taxes have gone up $120.00.  



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

20 

 

Commissioner Haynes commended Mayor Coppinger and his staff for keeping 

the County in good financial shape, and added that because of that there was not a 

need to implement a property tax freeze in Hamilton County. He reminded the public 

that property tax relief options are available for low-income senior citizens, disabled 

homeowners, and disabled veteran homeowners. It was noted the Property Tax Relief 

program is a state program, and available to Hamilton County citizens.  

 

Commissioner Mackey announced that he will be absent for next week’s 

Recessed Meeting and Agenda Session due to a meeting with the Tennessee County 

Commission Association. He echoed Commissioner Haynes comments about property 

taxes in Hamilton County. He reported that in 2007, several Commissioners voted for a 

tax increase to fund infrastructure after several major companies chose not to build in 

Hamilton County. He added that increasing property taxes at that time was necessary to 

attract major companies to the area, and allow the County to be sustained by growth 

rather than future tax increases.  

 

Commissioner Boyd spoke about an article he found while on a flight with Delta 

Airlines in Sky Magazine about Erlanger Hospital. He stated that the article was another 

example of how Chattanooga is on the global stage.  

 

Commissioner Smedley announced that her mother baked a chocolate pound 

cake for Commissioners after learning that most would not be supporting a property tax 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

21 

 

increase. She also recognized several realtors that were in the audience at today’s 

meeting.  

 

Mayor Coppinger announced the last budget workshop will take place on 

Tuesday, June 7th at 9:00 AM at the McDaniel Building. He added that the entire budget 

will be presented at this workshop.  

 

Chairman Bankston announced that Commissioner Smedley’s birthday was 

coming up on Sunday, May 29th.  

 

DELEGATIONS 

 

 Chairman Bankston asked for delegations on matters other than zoning. There 

were none. 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 



HAMILTON COUNTY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

MAY 18, 2016 
 

22 

 

 There being no further business, Chairman Bankston declared the meeting in 

recess until Wednesday, May 25, 2016 at 9:30 AM. 

 

       
       
      Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      William F. (Bill) Knowles, County Clerk 
Approved: 
 
   

________  
Date  Clerk’s Initials 
 
 

        

 



























No. 616-1 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
  A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE AND ACCEPT APPLICATIONS FOR 

NOTARY PUBLIC POSITIONS, THE BONDS AND OATHS OF 
NOTARIES PREVIOUSLY ELECTED, OATHS OF DEPUTY SHERIFFS, 
THE BOND OF DEPUTY SHERIFF, THE OATH OF OFFICE OF 
COMMISSIONER OF NORTH WEST UTILITY DISTRICT, AND THE 
OATHS OF JUDICIAL COMMISSIONERS. 

   
 
WHEREAS, William F. (Bill) Knowles, Hamilton County Clerk, has certified according to the 

records of his office that the persons named on the attached listing labeled 
“HAMILTON COUNTY NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” have duly 
applied for the positions so sought; and 

 
WHEREAS,  said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE 
OF THE COUNTY CLERK” have given approved bonds for the office of 
Notary Public and have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled "THE BOND OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFF'' has presented the bond of office; and  

 
WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 

person named on the attached listing labeled “OATH OF OFFICE OF 
COMMISSIONER OF THE NORTH WEST UTILITY DISTRICT” have 
taken the oaths of office; and 

 



 

 

WHEREAS, said Bill Knowles has certified according to the records of his office that the 
persons named on the attached listing labeled “OATHS OF JUDICIAL 
COMMISSIONERS” have taken the oath of office; and 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 

1. That the persons named on the listing labeled “HAMILTON COUNTY 
NOTARY PUBLIC APPLICATIONS” are hereby approved as applicants to be 
submitted to the Secretary of State; and 

 
2.  That the persons listed on the “REPORT FROM THE OFFICE OF THE 

 COUNTY CLERK” relative to bonds given for the position of Notary Public are 
 hereby approved for such and the bonds are accepted and the oaths therefor are 
 approved as taken; and 
 

3. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF DEPUTY 
SHERIFFS” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and. 

 
4. That the person named on the listing labeled “THE BOND OF DEPUTY 

SHERIFF” is accepted and the bond therefore is approved as taken; and 
 
5. That the person named on the listing labeled “OATH OF OFFICE OF 

COMMISSIONER OF THE NORTH WEST UTILITY DISTRICT” are 
accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; and  

 
6. That the persons named on the listing labeled “OATHS OF JUDICIAL    

COMMISSIONERS” are accepted and the oaths therefor are approved as taken; 
and 

 
 6. That each such person named on any listing hereinabove mentioned (which listing 

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference) is hereby deemed to have 
been individually considered according to the particular matter relating thereto. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 















































No. 616-2 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT ONE (1) MEMBER TO THE CHATTANOOGA-
HAMILTON COUNTY REGIONAL HEALTH COUNCIL FOR A FOUR (4) YEAR 
TERM BEGINNING JUNE 1, 2016 AND ENDING JUNE 1, 2020. 
  
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners and the County Mayor appoint members to 

the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Health Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the appointee representing the Commissioner of Districts 

Two has expired. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the following person is appointed to the Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Health 
Council for four (4) year term beginning June 1, 2016 and ending June 1, 2020. 
 
 APPOINTEE     APPOINTED BY 
 Joe DeGaetano    Commissioner Jim Fields, District Two 
      
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 



JOSEPH G.  (JOE) DEGAETANO 
Home: 820 Westwood Avenue, Chattanooga, Tennessee 37405 
Office: 50 Frazier Avenue, Suite 300, Chattanooga, Tennessee 37405 
Phone: (423) 255-7642 (mobile) 
Email: joe@jdfirm.com
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 

 I have engaged in the private practice of law in Tennessee continuously since 2001, and I have 
owned my own law firm since 2009.  My primary area of practice is civil litigation, and I also represent 
indigent criminal defendants in federal court.  My experience includes a significant amount of health care 
litigation and legal counseling on behalf of patients and providers.   
 

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 
 

• Hamilton County Board of Zoning Appeals – Member, 2015-present. 
• Legal Aid of East Tennessee – Volunteer representation of indigent clients, 2005-present. 
• Chattanooga Kids on the Block – Board of Directors, 2009-2011. 
• Normal Park Museum Magnet School – Regular volunteer, 2011-present. 
• Cottages at Knickerbocker Homeowners Association – Board of Directors, 2009-present. 
• North River Soccer Association – Youth Coach, 2012-present. 
• Tennessee Bar Association Tort & Insurance Practice Section – Chair, Executive Council, 2011-

2012 
 

EDUCATION 
 

University of Georgia School of Law, Athens, GA 
• Juris Doctor, 2000, Summa Cum Laude 
• GPA:  3.91/4.0, Class Rank:  2nd in class of 223 
• GEORGIA LAW REVIEW, Editorial Board  
• Awards for highest grades (A+) in Criminal Law, Torts, and Civil Procedure 

 
Vanderbilt University, Nashville, TN 

• Bachelor of Science, Economics, 1996, Magna Cum Laude 
• GPA:  3.68/4.0 
• President, Alpha Tau Omega Fraternity 

 
PERSONAL 

 
• Wife:  Heather DeGaetano.  Daughter:  Lucie DeGaetano (age 9) 
• Continuous resident of Chattanooga since March 2005 
• Continuous resident of Hamilton County (Hixson):  1979-1992 

mailto:joe@jdfirm.com�


No. 616-3 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF COUNTY 
COMMMISSIONER JIM FIELDS, COUNTY CLERK WILLIAM “BILL” KNOWLES, 
COUNTY FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR AL KISER, COUNTY ATTORNEY RHEUBIN 
M. TAYLOR AND COUNTY AUDITOR BILL MCGRIFF, AS MEMBERS TO THE 
HAMILTON COUNTY ETHICS COMMITTEE FOR TERMS OF TWO (2) YEARS.  
 
WHEREAS,  in compliance with Tennessee Code Annotated Section 8-17-103, this county 

legislative body passed Resolution No. 607-62 which adopted a code of ethics 
for Hamilton County officials and employees and established a Hamilton 
County Ethics Committee; and, 

 
WHEREAS, said resolution provides that the Hamilton County Ethics Committee shall 

consist of five (5) members, including the County Auditor and County 
Attorney, to be appointed by the County Mayor with the confirmation of the 
county legislative body with terms of two (2) years; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County Mayor has reappointed County Commissioner Jim Fields, County 

Clerk William “Bill” Knowles, County Finance Administrator Al Kiser, County 
Attorney Rheubin M. Taylor and County Auditor Bill McGriff to serve a two 
(2) year term, to end on June 3, 2018. 

 
NOW THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the reappointment of County Commissioner Jim Fields, County Clerk William “Bill” 
Knowles, County Finance Administrator Al Kiser, County Attorney Rheubin M. Taylor and 
County Auditor Bill McGriff to the Hamilton County Ethics Committee is hereby confirmed 
for a two (2) year term expiring June 3, 2018. 
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 



 

 

AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 
 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 



No. 616-4 
 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION MAKING AN APPROPRIATION TO TRI-COMMUNITY VOLUNTEER FIRE 
DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00) FROM 
GENERAL FUND DISCRETIONARY MONIES, AS ALLOTTED TO DISTRICT SEVEN. 
 
WHEREAS, Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated authorized the County Legislative Body to 

make appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Hamilton County Legislative Body recognizes the various nonprofit charitable and civic 

organizations located in Hamilton County have great need of funds to carry on their nonprofit 
work; and 

 
WHEREAS, Commissioner Sabrena Smedley has expressed a desire to allocate ten thousand dollars 

($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies to Tri-Community Volunteer Fire 
Department to assist with the purchase of a heating and air unit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County Legislative Body deems said funding to be in the best interest of the citizens of 

Hamilton County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) from General Fund discretionary monies be appropriated to Tri-
Community Volunteer Fire Department to assist with the purchase of a heating and air unit. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this appropriation be made subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. That the nonprofit charitable and civic organization to which funds are appropriated shall 
file with the County Clerk and the Administrator of Finance a copy of an annual report of 
its business affairs and transactions and the proposed use of the County’s funds.  Such 
annual report shall be prepared and certified by the chief financial officer of such 
nonprofit organization in accordance with Section 5-9-109(c), T.C.A. 

 
2. That said funds must only be used by the named nonprofit charitable and civic 

organization in furtherance of their nonprofit purpose benefiting the general welfare of 
the residents of the County. 

 
 



 

 

3. That it is the expressed interest of the County Commission of Hamilton County in 
providing these funds to the above named organization to be fully in compliance with 
Section 5-9-109 of the Tennessee Code Annotated and any and all other laws which may 
apply to County appropriations to nonprofit charitable and civic organizations and so this 
is made subject to compliance with any and all of these laws and regulations. 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 





































No. 616-5 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL OF COLLINS & COMPANY, INC. TO PROVIDE CLAIMS 
ADMINISTRATION SERVICES FOR HAMILTON COUNTY’S SELF INSURANCE PROGRAM FOR A 
PERIOD OF THREE (3) YEARS, BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016, WITH THE OPTION TO RENEW FOR 
THREE (3) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERMS, AND TO AUTHORIZE THE COUNTY MAYOR TO 
SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
WHEREAS,  proposals were received in response to public advertisement for a three (3) year contract, 

beginning July 1, 2016, with the option to renew for three (3) additional one (1) year terms, for 
Claims Administration Services; and, 

  
WHEREAS,  Hamilton County Government operates a self-funded on-the-job injury and liability program 

with claims that are administered and funded through the County Risk Management Office in 
Human Resources; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the County incurs property damage and injury claims in its daily service delivery; and, 
 
WHEREAS,  the proposal from Collins & Company, Inc was considered to be the lowest and best proposal 

received; and,  
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient funds available in the self-insurance fund. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the proposal from Collins & Company, Inc. to provide Claims Administration Services for Hamilton 
County’s Self Insurance Program for a period of three (3) years, beginning July 1, 2016, with an option to renew 
for three (3) additional one (1) year terms, is hereby accepted, said proposal being the best proposal received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT.  
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 









No. 616-6 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF KLEEN-A-MATIC FOR A ONE (1) YEAR 
CONTRACT BEGINNING, JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2017, WITH THE OPTION TO 
RENEW FOR ONE (1) ADDITIONAL ONE (1) YEAR TERM, FOR LINEN SERVICES AND 
AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO 
IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION.  
   
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for a one (1) year contract, 

with the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term  to supply linen 
services for the Hamilton County Employee Fitness Center for the Human Resources 
Department; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the bid from Kleen-A-Matic was considered to be the lowest and best bid received; 

and,  
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through 

the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning 
department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Kleen-A-Matic for linen services beginning July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017, with 
the option to renew for one (1) additional one (1) year term, for the Hamilton County Employee Fitness 
Center is hereby accepted, said being the lowest and best bid received, and authorizing the County 
Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER 
ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 































No. 616-7 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BLISS PRODUCTS AND SERVICES, INC. 
FOR SHREDDED RUBBER MULCH AMOUNTING TO $24,500.00 FOR THE 
RECREATION DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN 
ANY CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for shredded rubber 

mulch for playground safety surfacing for the Recreation Department; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Bliss Products and Services, Inc. amounting to $24,500.00 was 

considered to be the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Bliss Products and Services, Inc. for shredded rubber mulch amounting to 
$24,500.00 for the Recreation Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and 
best bid received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to 
implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 

























No. 616-8 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF PRATER FORD, INC. FOR ONE (1) 4X4 
UTILITY VEHICLE AMOUNTING TO $27,252.10 FOR EMERGENCY MEDICAL 
SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY CONTRACTS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
  
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for one (1) 4X4 utility 

vehicle for Emergency Medical Services; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bid from Prater Ford, Inc. amounting to $27,252.10 was considered to be 

the lowest and best bid received; and, 
 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded 

through the operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the 
requisitioning department from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond 
proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN 
SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of Prater Ford, Inc. for one (1) 4X4 utility vehicle amounting to $27,252.10 for 
Emergency Medical Services is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid 
received, and authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this 
resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND 
AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 





























No. 616-9 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID OF BFI WASTE SYSTEMS OF NORTH AMERICA FOR FOUR (4) 
YEAR CONTRACT PRICING, BEGINNING JULY 1, 2016 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2020, WITH THE OPTION 
TO RENEW FOR TWO (2) ADDITIONAL TWO (2) YEAR TERMS FOR SOLID WASTE SERVICES FOR 
THE SUPPORT SERVICES DEPARTMENT AND AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY MAYOR TO SIGN ANY 
CONTRACTS NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THIS RESOLUTION. 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received in response to public advertisement for four (4) year contract pricing, with 

the option to renew for two (2) additional two (2) year terms for solid waste services for the 
Support Services Department; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the bid of BFI Waste Systems of North America to provide containers and on-going service 

for the collection of general office waste from Hamilton County facilities was considered to 
be the lowest and best bid received; and, 

 
WHEREAS, there are sufficient previously budgeted funds available (for projects funded through the 

operating budget) and sufficient allocated funds available to the requisitioning department 
from bond proceeds (for projects funded from bond proceeds). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY, IN SESSION 
ASSEMBLED: 
 
That the bid of BFI Waste Systems of North America for four (4) year contract pricing, beginning July 1, 2016 
through June 30, 2020, with the option to renew for two (2) additional two (2) year terms, for solid waste services 
for the Support Services Department is hereby accepted, said bid being the lowest and best bid received, and 
authorizing the County Mayor to sign any contracts necessary to implement this resolution. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM AND AFTER ITS 
PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 





































No. 616-10 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: Brady Drive, Rod Lane and Prissy Lane 
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the Southfork 

Subdivision and have been inspected by the Hamilton County Division 
of Public Works and meet current County Subdivision Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein, completely describes the amendments to be made to 
the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits”. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district roads, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 

are hereby adopted and approved. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 



ROAD NAME               DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Brady Drive Brady Drive is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the The Southfork 
Subdivision on State Tax Map Numbers 77, leading 
from Birchwood Pike east 0.24 miles to a 
turnaround, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8” stone base, 
a 2”asphalt plant mix pavement with concrete curbs, 
and was built by Banther Construction and Spears 
Hopkins Paving for the developer, Dennis Banther. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 
 
Rod Lane Rod Lane is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th County 

Commission District in the The Southfork 
Subdivision on State Tax Map Numbers 77, leading 
from Brady Drive north 0.07 miles to a turnaround, 
has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8” stone base, a 2” asphalt 
plant mix pavement with concrete curbs, and was 
built by Banther Construction and Spears Hopkins 
Paving for the developer, Dennis Banther. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ROAD NAME DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Prissy Lane Prissy Lane is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the The Southfork 
Subdivision on State Tax Map Numbers 77, leading 
from Brady Drive south 0.05 miles to a turnaround, 
has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8” stone base, a 2” asphalt 
plant mix pavement with concrete curbs, and was 
built by Banther Construction and Spears Hopkins 
Paving for the developer, Dennis Banther. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

   
 



No. 616-11 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: Alexandra Place and Abigail Lane. 
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the Riverbay 

Estates Subdivision and have been inspected by the Hamilton County 
Division of Public Works and meet current County Subdivision 
Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein, completely describes the amendments to be made to 
the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits”. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district roads, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 

are hereby adopted and approved. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 



ROAD NAME               DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Alexandra Place Alexandra Place is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the Riverbay Estates 
Subdivision on State Tax Map Numbers 112, 
leading from Vincent Road north 0.15 miles to 
Abigail Lane, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 8” stone 
base, a 2” plant mix pavement with concrete curbs, 
and was built by Global Infrastructure and ADI 
Paving for the Developer Riverbay Partners G.P.  

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Abigail Lane Abigail Lane is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the The Riverbay 
Estates Subdivision on State Tax Map Numbers 
112, leading from Alexandra Place east and west 
0.46 miles to two turnarounds, has a 50’ right-of-
way, a 8” stone base, a 2”asphalt plant mix 
pavement with concrete curbs, and was built by 
Global Infrastructure and ADI Paving for the 
developer,  Riverbay Partners G.P.  

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 
 
 
 
 



No. 616-12 
 

 

 

   

STATE OF TENNESSEE 
Hamilton County 

 

 
June 1, 2016 

Date (Month, Day, Year) 
 

Hamilton County Board of Commissioners 
RESOLUTION 

 
 
 A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE “MASTER LIST OF ROADS AND SPEED 
LIMITS” SO AS TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING DISTRICT ROADS AND TO 
ESTABLISH SPEED LIMITS THEREFOR: White Pine Drive, Red Deer Lane, Gray 
Fox Court and Black Walnut Drive. 
 
WHEREAS, The above listed roads are new subdivision roads in the Hampton 

Meadows Creekside PUD and have been inspected by the Hamilton 
County Division of Public Works and meet current County Subdivision 
Regulations; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the list of roads, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 

herein by reference thereto as though fully and completely copied 
verbatim herein, completely describes the amendments to be made to 
the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits”. 

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THIS COUNTY LEGISLATIVE BODY 
IN SESSION ASSEMBLED: 
 
 1. That the above named roads be declared district roads, 2nd class. 
 
 2. That the attached amendments to the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” 

are hereby adopted and approved. 
 
 3. That the “Master List of Roads and Speed Limits” is hereby amended. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT THIS RESOLUTION TAKE EFFECT FROM 
AND AFTER ITS PASSAGE, THE PUBLIC WELFARE REQUIRING IT. 
 

 CERTIFICATION OF ACTION 

Approved: 
 
☐  

Rejected: 
 
☐ 

 
 
 

Approved: 
 
☐ 

County Clerk 
 
 

Vetoed: 
 
☐ 

 

  County Mayor 
 

June 1, 2016 

  
Date 

 



ROAD NAME               DESCRIPTION 
 
 
White Pine Drive White Pine Drive is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the Hampton 
Meadows Creekside PUD on State Tax Map 
Numbers 114, leading from Providence Road south 
0.16 miles to a temporary turnaround, has a 50/70’ 
right-of-way, a 8” stone base, a 2” asphalt plant mix 
pavement with concrete curbs, and was built by 
Barry Higgins Construction and Lofty Grading and 
Paving for the James Pratt. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 25 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Red Deer Lane Red Deer Lane is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the Hampton 
Meadows Creekside PUD on State Tax Map 
Numbers 114, leading from White Pine Drive east 
0.09 miles to a turnaround, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 
8” stone base, a 2” asphalt  plant mix pavement 
with concrete curbs, and was built by Barry Higgins 
Construction and Lofty Grading and Paving for the 
James Pratt. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ROAD NAME DESCRIPTION 
 
 
Gray Fox Court Gray Fox Court is in the 2nd Civil District, the 9th 

County Commission District in the Hampton 
Meadows Creekside PUD on State Tax Map 
Numbers 114, leading from White Pine Drive west 
0.11 miles to a turnaround, has a 50’ right-of-way, a 
8” stone base, a 2” asphalt plant mix pavement with 
concrete curbs, and was built by Barry Higgins 
Construction and Lofty Grading and Paving for the 
James Pratt. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

   
 
 

Black  Walnut Drive Black Walnut Drive is in the 2nd Civil District, the 
9th County Commission District in the Hampton 
Meadows Creekside PUD on State Tax Map 
Numbers 114, leading from White Pine Drive west 
0.08 miles to a temporary  turnaround, has a 50’ 
right-of-way, a 8” stone base, a 2” asphalt plant mix 
pavement with concrete curbs, and was built by 
Barry Higgins Construction and Lofty Grading and 
Paving for the developer,  James Pratt. 

 
  The speed limit on said road shall be 20 M.P.H. and 

that violation of the same, when posted, shall be a 
misdemeanor and punishable as such as provided by 
the laws of the State. 

 


	6-1-16 Public Agenda
	616-_S_Minutes_Recessed Meeting - May 11, 2016 _2316_05-11-16 Recessed
	616-_S_Minutes_Agenda Session - May 11, 2016 _2317_05-11-16 Agenda
	STATE OF TENNESSEE  )  Agenda Preparation Session

	616-_S_Minutes_Regular Meeting - May 18, 2016 _2324_05-18-16 Regular
	616-_S_Report_Trustee Excess Fee Report - April 2016_2313_April 2016 Excess Fee
	616-_S_Report_Trustee Monthly Report - April 2016_2314_April 2016 Monthly
	616-1_R_Bill Knowles_Notary_2326_06-01-16
	616-1_S_Bill Knowles_Notary_2326_06-01-16A
	616-2_R_Appointment(s)_ChattanoogaHamilton County Regional Health Council_2325_Chattanooga-Hamilton County Regional Health Council District 2
	616-2_S_Appointment(s)_ChattanoogaHamilton County Regional Health Council_2325_Joe DeGaetano bio
	616-3_R_Appointment(s)_Reappointment of members to the Hamilton County Ethics Committee_2327_Ethics
	616-4_R_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation for Tri Community Volunteer Fire Department_2312_Comm Smedley TriCommunity VFD
	616-4_S_Commissioner Turner-Smedley_Appropriation for Tri Community Volunteer Fire Department_2312_1789_001
	616-5_R_Alecia Poe_Claims Administration Services_2323_RES. CLAIMS ADMINISTRATION SERVICES
	616-5_S_Alecia Poe_Claims Administration Services_2323_Claims Administration Services
	616-6_R_Alecia Poe_Linen Services Contract_2321_RES. LINEN SERVICE FOR THE WELL
	616-6_S_Alecia Poe_Linen Services Contract_2321_Linen Service Contract
	616-7_R_Lee Norris_Shredded Rubber Mulch_2318_RES. SHREDDED RUBBER MULCH
	616-7_S_Lee Norris_Shredded Rubber Mulch_2318_Shredded Rubber Mulch
	616-8_R_Lee Norris_One 4X4 Utility Vehicle_2319_RES. ONE (1) 4x4 UTILITY VEHICLE
	616-8_S_Lee Norris_One 4X4 Utility Vehicle_2319_(1) 4X4 Utility Vehicle
	616-9_R_Todd Leamon_Solid Waste Services_2320_RES. SOLID WASTE SERVICES
	616-9_S_Todd Leamon_Solid Waste Services_2320_Solid Waste Services
	616-10_R_Todd Leamon_Amend Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_2309_southforksubdivision_resolution
	616-10_S_Todd Leamon_Amend Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_2309_supportingdocument
	616-11_R_Todd Leamon_Amend Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_2310_RiverbayEstates_resolution
	616-11_S_Todd Leamon_Amend Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_2310_riverbaysupportingdocument
	616-12_R_Todd Leamon_Amend Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_2311_HamptonMeadowsCreekside_resolution
	616-12_S_Todd Leamon_Amend Master List of Roads and Speed Limits_2311_HamptonMeadowsCreekside_supportingdocument

